
     

 
Notice of a public meeting of 
 

Economy, Place, Access and Transport Scrutiny Committee 
 
To: Councillors K Taylor (Chair), B Burton, J Burton, Fenton, 

Healey (Vice-Chair), Hook, Whitcroft, Steward, Vassie 
and Merrett 
 

Date: Tuesday, 20 May 2025 
 

Time: 5.30 pm 
 

Venue: West Offices - Station Rise, York YO1 6GA 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
1. Apologies for Absence    
 To note apologies for absence. 

 
2. Declarations of Interest   (Pages 5 - 6) 
 At this point in the meeting, Members and co-opted members are 

asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary interest, or other 
registerable interest, they might have in respect of business on 
this agenda, if they have not already done so in advance on the 
Register of Interests. The disclosure must include the nature of 
the interest. 
 

3. Minutes   (Pages 7 - 12) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the Economy, Place, Access, 

and Transport Policy and Scrutiny Committee meetings held on 
29 April 2025. 
 
 
 



 

4. Public Participation    
 At this point in the meeting members of the public who have 

registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may speak 
on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the Committee.  
 
Please note that our registration deadlines are set as 2 
working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the 
management of public participation at our meetings. The 
deadline for registering at this meeting is 5:00pm on Friday 16 
May 2025.  
 
To register to speak please visit 
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill in an online 
registration form. If you have any questions about the registration 
form or the meeting, please contact Democratic Services. 
Contact details can be found at the foot of this agenda.  
 
Webcasting of Public Meetings  
Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will 
be webcast including any registered public speakers who have 
given their permission. The meeting can be viewed live and on 
demand at www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.  
 

5. Tree Management and strategy    
 Report to follow.  

 
6. Section 106   (Pages 13 - 24) 
 This report provides the Committee with information regarding 

the Council’s approach to creating Section 106 agreements 
(S106) before they are signed off and the implementation of new 
tracking system and arrangements between Finance and 
Planning. 
 

7. Work Plan   (Pages 25 - 28) 
 Members are asked to consider the Committee’s work plan. 

 
8. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the 

Local Government Act 1972. 
 

http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts


 

Democratic Services officer: 
Name: 
Robert Flintoft 
Contact details: 
- Telephone – (01904) 555704 
- Email – Robert.flintoft@york.gov.uk  
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting: 
 

 Registering to speak 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports and 

 For receiving reports in other formats 
 

Contact details are set out above. 
 
 

 
 

Alternative formats 

If you require this document in an alternative language or format (e.g. large 
print, braille, Audio, BSL or Easy Read) you can: 

 

Email us at:  cycaccessteam@york.gov.uk 

 

Call us: 01904 551550 and customer services will pass your 
request onto the Access Team. 

 

Use our BSL Video Relay Service: 
www.york.gov.uk/BSLInterpretingService 

Select ‘Switchboard’ from the menu. 
 

mailto:Robert.flintoft@york.gov.uk
mailto:cycaccessteam@york.gov.uk
http://www.york.gov.uk/BSLInterpretingService


 
 

We can also translate into the following languages: 

 
 



Agenda Item 1 
Declarations of Interest – guidance for Members 

 

(1) Members must consider their interests, and act according to the 
following: 

Type of Interest You must 

Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests 

Disclose the interest, not participate 
in the discussion or vote, and leave 
the meeting unless you have a 
dispensation. 

Other Registrable 
Interests (Directly 
Related) 

OR 

Non-Registrable 
Interests (Directly 
Related) 

Disclose the interest; speak on the 
item only if the public are also 
allowed to speak, but otherwise not 
participate in the discussion or vote, 
and leave the meeting unless you 
have a dispensation. 

Other Registrable 
Interests (Affects) 

OR 

Non-Registrable 
Interests (Affects) 

Disclose the interest; remain in the 
meeting, participate and vote unless 
the matter affects the financial 
interest or well-being: 

(a) to a greater extent than it affects 
the financial interest or well-being of 
a majority of inhabitants of the 
affected ward; and 

(b) a reasonable member of the 
public knowing all the facts would 
believe that it would affect your view 
of the wider public interest. 

In which case, speak on the item 
only if the public are also allowed to 
speak, but otherwise do not 
participate in the discussion or vote, 
and leave the meeting unless you 
have a dispensation. 

(2) Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to the Member concerned or 
their spouse/partner. 

(3) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months must 
not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget calculations, 
and must disclose at the meeting that this restriction applies to 
them. A failure to comply with these requirements is a criminal 
offence under section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992. 

Page 1 Agenda Item 1Page 5 Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



City of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Economy, Place, Access and Transport 
Scrutiny Committee 

Date 29 April 2025 

Present 
 
 
 
 
Officers In 
Attendance 

Councillors K Taylor (Chair), B Burton, 
J Burton, Fenton, Healey (Vice-Chair), Hook, 
Steward, Vassie, Merrett and Coles 
(Substitute) 
 
James Gilchrist - Director of Environment, 
Transport and Planning 
Steve Ball - Resilience and Contingencies 
Manager 
Georgina Meredith - Resilience and 
Emergencies Officer 
Ian Hoult - Head of Environmental Services 
Rebecca Copley - Business Manager for 
Environmental Services 

Apologies Councillors Whitcroft  

 

57. Apologies for Absence (17:30)  
 
Apologies was received from Cllr Whitcroft, he was substituted by Cllr 
Coles. 
 
58. Declarations of Interest (17:30)  

 
Members were invited to declare at this point in the meeting any personal 
interests not included on the Register of Interests, any prejudicial interests 
or any disclosable pecuniary interests they might have in the business on 
the agenda. 
 
Cllr Coles confirmed that in relation to minute 61. Emergency Planning that 
was the Deputy Mayor for Police Fire and Crime at the York and North 
Yorkshire Combined Authority and emergency planning were apart of her 
portfolio.  
 
59. Minutes (17:31)  

 
The Committee discussed the minutes from the 25 March 2025 and 
highlighted a number of amendments the Committee considered were 
needed before they could be agreed. The Chair therefore invited members 

Page 7 Agenda Item 3



of the Committee to send amendments to him outside of the meeting to 
then be amended in the minutes before they come back to the Committee.  
 
Resolved:  Members of the Committee to send amendments to the chair.  

 
 

60. Public Participation (17:35)  
 

It was reported that there had been two registrations to speak at the 
meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme. 
 
Flick Williams stated that buses in York only having one space for 
wheelchair users was discriminating against wheelchair users who were 
being left behind by crowded buses and highlighted 140 cases where 
wheelchair users had been left at bus stops.  
 
Gwen Swinburn raised concern at the rise in parking charges in areas such 
as the Groves on residents and businesses and stated that the Council was 
charging less for parking in wealthier areas such as Bishopthorpe. She 
asked that the Council review its parking charging policies.  

 
 

61. Emergency Planning (17:42)  
 

The Resilience and Contingencies Manager introduced the report on 
emergency planning. He highlighted how the Council works with partners 
and government in relation to emergency events, the training undertaken 
for both officers and Councillors regarding emergency planning and 
confirmed that the Council’s emergency planning was internally audited 
and undertook a peer review in 2024. He noted that the Council would 
often hold at leadership and guidance role during emergency events and 
the Council always had a senior officer as a Silver Commander on call, 
which could always be escalated to Gold Command.  
 
The Committee noted that there were so many potential emergencies the 
city could face, with a particular highlighting of the power cuts in Spain, 
they enquired how could the Council prepare for such a wide range of 
emergencies. Officers confirmed that plans were in place for a wide range 
of emergencies, even so, they confirmed that every emergency was 
different. Therefore, it was explained that it was important to focus on 
planning to deal with the potential outcome of an emergency, rather than 
ever possible event.  
 
Members discussed individual preparation and enquired about how 
residents could ensure they are prepared for emergencies. Officers noted 

Page 8



that there are outreach events such as York Get Ready Together to 
promote preparation. The Local Resilience Forum website was also 
highlighted which included resources such as Household Plan templates. 
The Committee acknowledged the usefulness of the QR code provided on 
the Local Resilience Forum templates which provided information to 
residents about preparedness, they did however, reason concerns for 
those that might not be able to use a QR code, officers acknowledged that 
the QR might not be accessible to all residents and highlighted the use of 
the chatbot function on the site which could respond directly to residents 
and provide appropriate information.  
 
Members discussed whether more could be done to promote resilience and 
things such as the Household Plan template. They considered whether 
copies of the template and links to it could be added to community 
noticeboards. Members also enquired about whether they could seek grant 
or sponsorship funding to send information on preparedness to all 
households. It was noted that the Council was exploring including resilience 
information in annual council tax letters. Members also enquired about 
ensuring support was provided to small businesses, noting that larger 
organisations would like to have their own specific plans. Members also 
enquired as to whether there was scope to commercialise emergency 
planning for small businesses.  
 
The Committee enquired about how the Council ensures vulnerable 
residents are prioritised and supported in emergencies. Officers confirmed 
that data sets were kept to identify vulnerable individuals, and work was 
done with adult and children’s social care to ensure support was provided 
to venerable individuals. Members enquired about whether people could 
self-identify or identify others they know that are vulnerable, officers 
confirmed that this was the case, and that people could be identified to the 
Council by relatives.   
 
Officers confirmed that in cases of emergencies rest centres could be 
established, for security reasons it was confirmed that there was not a 
publishable list for these centres. It was confirmed as part of 
communications with Councillors things such as the locals of rest centres in 
their wards would be shared with them as part handling any emergency. 
On communications it was confirmed that in cases of emergency the 
Council worked on the principle of having a single version of the truth 
communicated. Members enquired about military assistance and whether 
this could be affected by changes to the barracks in Fulford. Officers 
confirmed that each region had an assigned liaison officer so changes 
would not affect how emergencies would be dealt with. The Council 
maintained the ability to request military assistance, this would be sent to 

Page 9



the Sectary of State who would decide whether to deploy military 
personnel. 
 
Councillor training was discussed with the opportunity for future training to 
be considered by the Council’s Joint Standards Committee to support 
Members to be prepared and able to support their communities.  
 
Members raised the digital switch over and enquired about what measures 
could be taken to address the challenges the switch over could present to 
residents in relation to being prepared for emergencies. Officers noted that 
the switch over presented a challenge due its wide window for rollout and 
how it was being done by individual companies rather than one coordinated 
project. They noted that it was important to continue to warn people to be 
prepared for the switch over.     
 
Resolved:  
 

i. Request that the Executive explore how the Council can include 
more information on resilience in its communications and to 
seek support for an all-household communication to promote 
resilience planning; 

ii. To request that the Executive explore the scope to 
commercialise emergency planning for small businesses; 

iii. To recirculate the link for Emergency Planning to Committee 
members; 

iv. To request that officers review how temporary Council IDs are 
assigned. 

 
Reason: To promote resilience against potential emergency events.  

 
 

62. bags to bins report (19:14)  
 

The Head of Environmental Services introduced the report on the roll out of 
the bags to bins project. Officers noted that for the first phase letters would 
be going out shortly to inform households of the change and a second 
round of letters would include FAQs ahead of the move to bins from bags. 
It was confirmed that the first phase would include 2835 properties with a 
similar number in phase two, phase three would look to review those final 
properties not included in phases one or two to review again whether it 
might be possible to move them to bins. It was confirmed that the move 
form bags to bins would provide benefits by containing waste and would 
improve health and safety of the collection crews. 
 

Page 10



The Committee discussed the communications plan to households and 
enquired about how the Council would promote the assisted collection 
service. Officers confirmed that a wide range of information such as the 
assisted collection service would be included in the second letter to 
residents, however, they confirmed that the Council was prepared to 
receive enquires from residents after the first letter that will be sent out. 
Officers confirmed they would also keep Ward Councillors engaged where 
the rollout was being carried out. 
 
Members enquired about potential challenges with the move to bins such 
as potential blocking of back alleys. Officers confirmed that site visits would 
be undertaken early on to identify challenges and potential solutions, while 
all residents would be shared information on how to store and present bins. 
Members enquired whether the site visit walkabouts would help identify 
other issues such as parking. Officers confirmed that parking was always a 
problem city wide for waste collection, where persistent issues were 
identified, these were passed to transport to consider actions such as 
parking restrictions.   
 
The Committee enquired whether those households that would still be 
using bags could apply for moving to a bin. Officers confirmed that 
residents could request this, and the Council would review and seek to 
provide bin collections if possible. Members asked if the Council had maps 
showing those areas that would be continuing bag collections, it was 
confirmed it did and these could be shared with the Committee.  
 
Resolved:  
 

i. Noted the report and thanked officers for there work on the 
project.  

 
Reason: To ensure the rollout of bags to bins is progressing 

successfully.  
 
 

63. Work Plan (19:50)  
 

 

The Committee considered its work plan acknowledging the changes to 
Scrutiny after Annual Council which will see changes to the Committee. 
Members enquired about the possibility of having the report on parking and 
officers confirmed that they would discuss with the Executive Member for 
Transport about bringing a report on parking to the Committee’s May 
meeting. Members also noted that it had been a year since the task and 

Page 11



finish group on Dail and Ride and proposed a update on the topic be added 
to the work plan for the new scrutiny structure to review.  
 
Resolved:  
 

i. Noted the work plan with requests for parking and Dial and Ride 
to be added to the work plan.  

 
Reason: To ensure the Committee has a program of work.  

 
 
 
 
 

Cllr Taylor, Chair 
[The meeting started at 5.30 pm and finished at 7.56 pm]. 

Page 12



 

 

  
 

   

 
Scrutiny Management Committee  
 

20th May 2025 

 
Report of the Director of Environment, Transport and Planning 
 

Securing, Monitoring and Delivering Planning Obligations (Section 106 agreements) 

Summary 

1. The Chair of the Scrutiny Management Committee has requested information on.  

a. CYC’s approach to creating Section 106 agreements (S106) before they are 
signed off.  

b. Implementation of new tracking system and arrangements between Finance 
and Planning. 

Background 

What Are Planning Obligations? 

2. Planning obligations are legal obligations entered into to mitigate the impacts of a 
development proposal. This can be via planning agreement secured under Section 
106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 by a person with an interest in the 
land and the local planning authority; or via a unilateral undertaking entered into by 
a person with an interest in the land without the local planning authority. Planning 
obligations run with the land, are legally binding and enforceable. A unilateral 
undertaking cannot bind the local planning authority because they are not party to it. 
(Planning Obligations, Paragraph 001, National Planning Practice Guidance). 

3. As set out within Paragraph 002 Planning obligations of the National Planning 
Practice Guidance. Planning obligations assist in mitigating the impact of 
unacceptable development to make it acceptable in planning terms. Planning 
obligations may only constitute a reason for granting planning permission if they 
meet the tests that they are necessary to make the development acceptable in 
planning terms. They must be: 

Page 13 Agenda Item 6



 

A) Necessary to make a development acceptable in planning terms; 

B) Directly related to the development; and  

C) Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.  

 

4. Planning obligations typically comprise of two forms. Financial and non-financial 
obligations. A financial obligation typically secures the payment of a financial sum 
payable to the Council which will then in turn be used to fund the delivery of specific 
item of infrastructure. These include contributions toward the provision of school 
places or for items such as highway or transportation improvements or public realm 
improvements to play areas or community sports facilities. A non-financial obligation 
is where the developer will, as part of the development, provide the physical 
infrastructure that is required. An example of this would be the provision of on-site 
affordable housing. 

5. In all cases the completed Section 106 Agreement will set out what obligations are 
to be provided and when by the developer. In cases where the Council is a 
signatory to the agreement there will be covenants upon the Council. These 
typically, in the case of financial obligations, define how the obligation will be spent 
and what it must be used for. There will also usually be a time period within which 
the obligation has to be spent.  

When are Planning Obligations Secured? 

6. The negotiation and securing of planning obligations is undertaken as part of the 
planning process and the consideration and determination of a planning application. 
Where it is considered necessary to secure planning obligations the granting of 
planning permission will not occur until such time a Section 106 Agreement is 
completed. This ensures that the obligations required to make a proposal 
acceptable in planning terms are legally secured before the grant of planning 
permission. 

7. During the planning application process key technical consultees, as part of their 
consultation responses set out their ‘asks’ which they wish to see secured as part of 
the development proceeding. Any ‘asks’ need to be justified in planning terms. This 
will typically be via policies contained within the Local Plan and informed by national 
guidelines or standards. These are often then reinforced by area specific 
frameworks, for example for calculating commuted sums for off-site public open 
space. In each case as part of the planning process these ‘asks’ are reviewed by 
the Local Planning Authority and if they are considered necessary, they form part of 
the Section 106 negotiations with the applicant. Inclusion of any ‘asks’ from 
technical consultees is incorporated into the planning balance of assessing the 
application. In the majority of cases ‘asks’ are usually justified.   

8. In a scenario whereby the applicant is not willing to sign up to the Section 106 
agreement a grant of planning permission would not be forthcoming. If obligations 
are required to make a development acceptable in planning terms the absence of 

Page 14



 

those obligations would mean that development is unacceptable in planning terms 
and would mean planning permission should be refused. 

9. When securing obligations via a Section 106 Agreement it is also common to 
specify when an obligation either in whole or part will become due. For financial 
obligations the agreement will specify when the obligation is to be paid to the 
Council. This could be tied to development commencing; development being first 
occupied or a specified point in the development, such as a certain number of 
dwellings being occupied. For physical on-site infrastructure the provision would be 
linked to a milestone within the development cycle, such as prior to first occupation 
or a specified number of units being occupied.   

10. In negotiating these aspects there are several factors which are considered. Some 
obligations, such as securing a Traffic Regulation Order may be required early in 
the development phase. Therefore, this could be justified as being a payable upon 
commencement obligation. Others such as Education contributions could be tied to 
first occupation because the impact upon the nearby schools would not happen until 
the development is beginning to be occupied. Equally in larger scale developments 
phased payments could be justified as the full impacts of a development do not 
occur until a development is nearing completion. An agreement can have multiple 
trigger points across multiple obligations. Whilst agreements do have a degree of 
commonality in how they are structured, or common functions and purposes each 
agreement is ultimately entirely unique. There is no one size fits all solution.   

11. Structuring obligations in this manner, particularly financial obligations, presents 
advantages to both the Council and the developer. For the Council many financial 
obligations will be repayable if not used within a specified time period. That time 
period will not normally begin until all of the monies due have been paid. Phased 
payments allow for larger projects to be planned and delivered. For the developer 
phased payments can provide a degree of certainty in respect of cash flow. They 
can plan the upfront costs of the development whilst having confidence that other 
obligations will not become due until later in the development once, for example 
when they have sold elements of the development. 

12. Another tool that is often negotiated into an agreement is index linking financial 
obligations. There can often be a lag time between a s.106 agreement being 
completed and a development commencing, with potential further lag time between 
development commencing and the agreed trigger point being reached. During this 
lag time economic inflation occurs which can act to diminish the purchasing power 
of that particular obligation. For example, a Section 106 Agreement is entered into 
in 2020 securing a contribution of £10,000. The obligation is index linked and 
becomes due for payment in January 2025. Applying indexation to this obligation 
the actual amount required to be paid to the Council is £12,452.43. 

13. Once a financial obligation is paid to the Council it is not uncommon for the Council 
to be obliged, by the Section 106 Agreement, to then hold the monies in an interest-
bearing account. This allows the monies to continue to make modest gains on the 
overall amount. This serves two purposes. Firstly, in the event of the monies being 
spent it can further increase the purchasing power of that contribution to the 
spending service, allowing it to be maximised as far as possible. Secondly, in the 

Page 15



 

event of the monies not being spent and the obligation to repay the monies to the 
developer it provides a slight return on the obligation to the developer.   

14. In basic terms a Section 106 agreement is contract between a developer and the 
Council which secures and delivers the infrastructure needed to offset the impacts 
of a development proposal. The agreement will specify the obligations upon the 
developer such as what is to be provided and by when. Similarly, it will specify 
what, how and when the Council will deliver or maintain that infrastructure. 
Particularly in the case of financial obligations the covenant on the Council will be 
specific in what the monies can be spent on and the deadline by which they need to 
be spent. As such all financial planning obligations are to a great extent already 
allocated toward funding something. The collective pot of monies secured via 
Section 106 Agreements is not an open pool which can be used to fund the latest 
corporate priorities or projects.  

15. Once a Section 106 Agreement is completed it is not impossible for it to be varied. If 
the signatory parties are in agreement then a Deed of Variation can be secured to 
vary the provisions of the agreement. These are not uncommon, and it the majority 
of cases occur when amendments are made to the original planning permission. In 
this situation the variation would simply ensure that the agreement keeps pace with 
the consented planning permission. 

16. Other scenarios where variations may be sought could be in a scenario where 
economic factors change the viability of a scheme and the developer may wish to 
seek a renegotiation. In this scenario the Local Planning Authority is under no 
obligation to agree these amendments. Any decision would be a balance between 
potentially still securing the development versus the impacts of renegotiated 
obligations. 

Written Example of an Obligation 

17. As part of the Development Management process, it is considered necessary to 
secure funding toward the provision of Play Space Improvements. At the time of 
negotiating the Section 106 Agreement it was determined that £10,000 was the 
contribution required.  

18.  Upon completing the Section 106 Agreement the developer agreed to ‘not to allow 
the occupation of any of the dwellings until it has paid the Play Space Improvement 
Contribution. It was also agreed that the Contribution would be indexed linked.  

19. As part of completing the Section 106 Agreement the Council agreed to a series of 
covenants. Firstly, the Council agreed, upon written request, to provide a receipt for 
the Play Space Contribution. The Council also agreed to hold the contribution in an 
interest-bearing account. 

20. Critically the agreement also stipulates what the contribution is to be spent on by 
stating. ‘To only apply the Play Space Improvement contribution towards procuring 
the provision of improvements to play space within the vicinity of the land, the need 
for which directly arises from the development and the Council shall (on reasonable 
request of the payee or the payees nominee) provide evidence that the monies 
have been so applied.’  

Page 16



 

21. The final covenant then requires the Council to ‘repay to the person or persons 
making the play space contribution and part of that sum (with interest accrued) 
which has not been spent for the purpose specified (Play Space Improvements) 
within five years of receipt. 

22. As can be seen through the above written example any planning obligation that is 
secured will already be earmarked for a particular use by the provisions of the 
completed Section 106 Agreement. The spending of the obligation is not for 
determining once it is received by the Council. It is paid to the Council on the basis 
of being used for the purposes as set out in the Section 106 Agreement.  

How are Obligations Monitored? 

23. It is important to stress that the granting of planning permission and the securing of 
a Section 106 Agreement does not categorically guarantee that the obligations 
secured would come to fruition. Planning obligations are contingent upon the 
planning permission being implemented and the specified trigger point within that 
agreement being reached.  

24. When planning permission is granted that is subject to a Section 106 Agreement 
securing obligations the case is automatically flagged up to the Development 
Monitoring team within Planning and Development Services. The Section 106 
agreement is recorded into the monitoring system Exacom. In tandem with this a 
copy of the Section 106 agreement is published to online Planning Register; this 
provides a public copy of the agreement that has been secured. 

25. At the point of first recording the legal agreement contact is made with the 
developer or their representatives to introduce the monitoring team and seek 
confirmation of a liable party. This liable party then become our first point of contact 
for the purposes of monitoring the development. At this stage we will also take the 
opportunity to remind the liable party of their most immediate obligations. Often this 
can be their obligation, as secured by the s.106 agreement to notify the Council that 
that then intend to commence development.  

26. There are a number of methods utilised for the physical monitoring of the site. 
These include physical visits to the site, having dialogue with the developer and 
monitoring other planning applications for the same site, for example it is common 
for a development to need to discharge numerous planning conditions before being 
able to commence on site. Those applications are dealt with by Development 
Management. These can be an indication that a developer is preparing to 
commence on site. Throughout the monitoring process dialogue with the developer 
is important. 

27. In the case of financial obligations. When the specified trigger point is reached or 
the developer has advised that it is imminent the obligation is reviewed and a 
demand notice prepared. This demand notice specifies the obligation that is due 
and the amount that is due. It is common practice when dealing with financial 
obligations to index link them. In practice this means when an obligation is due and 
prior to issuing the demand notice we will seek assistance from finance to calculate 
the indexation to be applied to the obligation. Once confirmed the demand notice is 
issued to the liable party along with details of how to make payment.   

Page 17



 

28. Payments are received by colleagues in finance who will confirm receipt of the 
payment to the Council. The Compliance and Monitoring team will then record the 
payment on Exacom, to record that the issued demand notice has been satisfied. 
The monies once received are held within a Section 106 holding account.  

29. Once the Council is in receipt of the monies. The Compliance and Monitoring Team 
will advise the ‘spending’ service area of the monies being available and issue them 
with Request to Release forms to draw the monies into their local accounts. A 
spending service is typically the service area within the Council who first requested 
the obligation and will be the service responsible with spending the monies secured 
to deliver the obligation. For example an obligation securing a contribution for 
Sports provision or enhancements will ultimately be released to the Community 
Sports Service for them to liaise and support sports clubs or community groups in 
spending the secured obligation.  

30. One of the limitations of Section 106 Agreements is that the obligations it places 
upon the developer and the Council are set at the very start of the development 
process, prior to the granting of planning permission. In cases where the associated 
development takes a number of years to build out local priorities may change. 

Governance of Section 106 Agreements  

31. The obligations secured via a Section 106 Agreement whether they be financial or 
non-financial obligations are secured by the Local Planning Authority and then 
distributed to the delivering service area. A Section 106 Agreement will place 
obligations upon the developer and the Council in respect of how, when and where 
obligations will be delivered. It is acknowledged that particularly in the case of 
financial obligations Section 106 agreements do and have generated a significant 
amount of money into the Council. However, it must be clear that these are not 
funds that can be used at will by the Council. Each individual agreement will 
precisely specify what it is to be used for and when it is to be used by.  

32. To this end in the last 24 months the Compliance and Monitoring Team have 
started to use release and spend forms with spending service areas. The purpose 
of these is enhance traceability of s.106 obligations and impress upon the spending 
service areas the conditions attached to the associated obligation, for example what 
it is for, where it is to be spent and the time in which it must be spent by. In practice 
this process begins when receipt of the monies is confirmed as being paid to the 
Council. As part of advising the spending service area the monies are available, 
they are also invited to request release of the funds to their own service budgets. 

33. When the monies are then spent the spending service are required to notify the 
Compliance and Monitoring team that the monies have been spent and what they 
have been spent on. Allowing full traceability of spend to ensure compliance with 
the relevant s.106 agreement. One of the challenges particularly around the 
recording of spending obligations is ensuring spending services notify the 
Compliance and Monitoring team of spend. This can be due a planning obligation 
only making a small proportion of a larger spend, for example in projects where 
other funding is also used such as grants or capital budgets. Experience has also 
demonstrated that the reconciliation of budgets toward the financial year end can 
also delay spending notification. It is imperative that spending service areas 

Page 18



 

understand the conditions attached to financial planning obligations and the need 
for their spending to be recorded accurately and in a timely manner.      

34. One of the advantages of the Exacom monitoring platform is that it provides better 
visibility of planning obligations and their requirements to Officers, along with 
providing alerts to check the progress of development and the spending of 
obligations. Enhanced tracking of Planning obligations allows for a more timely 
response to enquiries by the public and Councillors as to the status of planning 
obligations for a particular development. Importantly it facilities production of the 
Annual Infrastructure Statement (IFS) which is a statutory annual report covering 
planning obligation activity.     

35. The obligations secured via Section 106 Agreement are secured solely on the basis 
that they are considered necessary to make a development proposal acceptable in 
planning terms. It is therefore the role of Planning and Development Services as 
part of their remit to monitor development and the operate the wider Development 
Management process of the Local Planning Authority. 

Challenges of Section 106 Agreements 

36. Planning Obligations are not without their challenges. The initial securing of the 
obligations doesn’t normally present too many issues. Developers generally already 
have an expectation that obligations would be necessary and subject to the Council 
being able to justify them, in most cases, developers are agreeable to them. 
Developers are also fully aware that in the absence of reaching agreement in 
respect of Planning Obligations they are unlikely to receive a grant of planning 
permission.  

37. Once an agreement moves into its monitoring phase the challenges faced can vary 
from site to site. As a starting point the Local Planning Authority will also seek to 
engage with a developer to ensure that the obligations secured are delivered in a 
timely manner in accordance with the provisions of the secured agreement. In many 
cases this collaborative approach works. In instances where a developer fails to 
meet their obligations there are normally mechanisms within the secured agreement 
to deal with this such as penalty charges in the case of financial obligations. 

38. Often, however, the largest challenges of Section 106 Agreements occur at the 
delivery phase. This can be a particular issue in respect of financial obligations 
which the Council are obliged to use for the delivery of items of infrastructure. The 
challenges faced in this regard can vary depending upon the spending service and 
the nature of the obligation. For example, spending in areas such as Sport are not 
usually problematic as the monies are typically transferred to a local provider such 
as sports club for spending. With the assistance of the Community Sports Team the 
obligation is either spent in isolation or it is topped up by the club from other funds 
to meet any shortfall. Typically, in the context of Section 106 Agreements these are 
smaller amounts of money.  

39. Challenges around the delivery of secured obligations tend to occur in instances 
where the infrastructure to be provided is larger and more complex. A secured 
obligation may provide a defined sum of monies to be used for the delivery of 
particular infrastructure. However the process of delivering this can also incur costs 

Page 19



 

which are not recoverable. For example, staffing costs incurred by the spending 
service to deliver a piece of infrastructure.  

40. The delivering service therefore have to juggle priorities of other projects and 
Council funded projects in terms of the allocation of project manager resource to 
deliver projects.  This is a real challenge for services where no project staff budget 
exists and the delivery is funded by charging capital fees. 

41. There are instances for some obligations staffing costs can be built into the 
agreement, with a portion of the monies secured being eligible to cover staffing 
costs. This can occur with Affordable Housing provision where the definitions for 
commuted sums include staffing costs. 

42. In many cases no such associated costs provision can be made so the challenge 
becomes one of Council resource in respect of delivering secured obligations. 
Delivering obligations secured can be challenging in circumstances where the 
associated Council resource is finite and has be spread across numerous different 
priorities.  

Distributing Section 106 Information 

43. Planning Infrastructure Statement (IFS) is published on the Council’s web site on a 
yearly basis by the end of December for the previous financial year. This is publicly 
available for years from 2019 onwards.   

44. The IFS has been made available to members of CMT to ensure that existing 
contributions that have been collected and available have been circulated.  

45. Finance circulates a Section 106 Management Report quarterly to each of the 
receiving departments, which outlines the contributions received, when and what 
development they are tied to.  

46. It has been agreed that a spread sheet of contributions will presented at the City 
Development Board who will be looking at specific projects and how to ensure the 
contributions are spent. 

47. The Planning compliance team are working with colleagues in other departments to 
work through contributions that have been with us the longest time and are at risk of 
being paid back.  

Alternatives to Section 106 Agreements 

48. The primary alternative to securing planning obligations via Section 106 Agreement 
is to implement the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) as a means of funding 
infrastructure. To do this a Local Authority must adopt a CIL Charging Schedule. An 
adopted CIL Charging Schedule would set the rate at which the Levy will be 
charged and defines the type of development it would be charged upon. These 
rates would track annual inflation.   

49. CIL acts as a levy upon new development. In terms of the amount payable this is 
calculated on the basis of Gross Internal Area X CIL Rate with the Levy becoming 
payable at the point at which development is implemented. Exemptions for things 

Page 20



 

such as Self Build are available as are credits for vacant buildings. In larger 
developments phased payment structures are usually available. 

50. The implementation of CIL will not entirely negate the need for Section 106 
Agreements. They will still be required in some circumstances, for example to 
secure on-site affordable housing provision and on sites such as Strategic 
allocations within the Local Plan where it has been determined CIL would not be 
levied. However, the bulk of financial obligations would fall away having been 
superseded by CIL. 

51. The adoption of a CIL charging schedule would have two notable changes. It would 
broaden the amount of development from which a levy or obligation would be 
generated. For example, at present obligations are only typically sought on Major 
applications (applications of 10+ residential units). Whereas under CIL, assuming a 
qualifying exemption was not secured, a development of 1.no residential unit would 
be liable for CIL.  

52.  Another opportunity CIL provides is that in terms of spending, it operates at a 
strategic city-wide level and has greater flexibility. Whereas obligations secured by 
Section 106 agreement are typically tied to a specific item of infrastructure or 
named locations, collected CIL monies would go into a central collective pot. The 
levy can be used to fund a wide range of infrastructure including transport, flood 
defences, schools, hospitals and other health and social care facilities, sport and 
recreation facilities and open spaces. It can also be used to increase capacity of 
existing infrastructure or to repair existing failing infrastructure. Whilst CIL receipts 
would not create a totally un-conditional funding source it would be significantly 
more flexible that the obligations secured via a Section 106 Agreement. The 
Council would also have the ability to review its infrastructure funding priorities at is 
own discretion. The spending of CIL monies would also not be time limited or be 
liable for repayment in the event of not being spent within a specified time.  

53.  The greater degree of spending flexibility that CIL allows for would also assist with 
covering gaps in funding. CIL effectively allows for monies to be pooled as required 
to deliver a particular item of infrastructure. This would address issues that have 
been seen in the past with Section 106 financial obligations where, for example, an 
amount of £15,000 is secured toward the provision of a new bus stop. However 
upon further work the true cost of providing the bus stop totals £20,000. It then falls 
to the Council to find and fund that £5,000 shortfall from other sources.  

54. The only obligation of CIL funding is that the Council must spend the levy on 
infrastructure needed to support the development of their area and it is for the 
Council to decide what infrastructure is needed. In addition, where chargeable 
development within the area of a Parish Council occurs the charging authority 
(CYC) must pass a proportion of the CIL receipts from the development to the 
Parish Council. 

Consultation  

55.      No consultation has taken place as this report is provided for information only      

 

Page 21



 

Risk Management 
 

56.     This report is prepared for information purposes. As such it is not considered that 
there are any notable risks arising from the content of the report or the 
recommendations that are being made. The purpose of planning obligations is to 
offset and mitigate the impacts of a particular development and make a 
development acceptable in planning terms. Failure to do this could place an 
additional burden upon the public bodies who it would then fall to provide such 
infrastructure, such as the Council. Such impacts could be felt in multiple areas 
such as within the Council’s roles of Local Highway Authority, Local Education 
Authority and as a provider of public spaces and community sports and recreation 
facilities.   

 
 Recommendations 

57.  Members are asked to  

1) note the information.  

Reason: Provide reassurance to scrutiny committee members 

Contact Details 

 
Author  

 
Chief Officer Responsible for the 
report: James Gilchrist 
Director of Environment, Transport and 
Planning 
 

 
 

Becky Eades 
Head of Planning and Development Services 
Planning and Development Services 
Environment Transport and Planning 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Report 
Approved 

tick 
Date 12/05/2025 

 

 

Page 22



 

Wards Affected:  List wards or tick box to indicate all All tick 

 
 
For further information please contact the author of the report 
Becky Eades 
 
Abbreviations 
 
 

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



List for items for new Scrutiny Committee(s) to pick up 

 
Dial & Ride  

- Update on administration’s work on this, since Task & Finish Group recommendations passed in June 2024.  A “one year on” meaningful update would be 

appreciated by all concerned here, as that’s plenty of time. 

 

Review of CYC’s Property Asset Portfolio 

- Covering how each of CYC’s property assets are performing in terms of income generation/returns on investment, their long-term security / financial 

prospects, possible disposals, use-class mix, vacancy rates, any scope for meanwhile use for communities, opportunity to feed into next Asset Management 

Strategy (as now expired), and anything else of value. 

 

Input into formulation of next Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 

- Including an eye to progressing the on-street parking question which has not been prioritised to date. 

 

Car Parking provision across the city 

The report we did not get in March 2025 - Covering public, private and Park & Ride provision, Blue Badge parking, income received, usage, impact on closing 

Castle Car Park on the wider estate, wider aims e.g. shifting to less polluting vehicles, approach taken for busy shopping areas outside of the city-centre (e.g. 

Haxby, Acomb Front St), future of Res Park. 

 

Parking Enforcement 

- Costs of service / Income generated - scope to improve?  Can we offer services to private land owners? 

- Activity across entire local authority area - How many enforcement officers do we have, how many fines issued, which areas of their city are they issued in, 

how often are Res Park zones visited.  A view of this over the last 5 - 10 years would be helpful for identifying trends. 

- Position on pavement parking 

- Consistency of enforcement (seen officers apply different limits to Double Yellow Lines) 

- Hotline performance - how many reports logged, how many of these received visits in a timely manner (or at all) 

Out-of-hours drop in provision due to over-stretched Police unable to prioritise parking 

 

Review of York’s economy / economic development strategy 

Stock-take of performance against current strategy and its relevance next to the Combined Authority’s economic development role, as well as key personell 

changes within CYC 

Pros and cons of combining economic development services with the Combined Authority 

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 7



 

Planning and Development Services - enforcement 

Operational challenges / opportunities, performance over the last 5-10 years relative to staffing numbers, numbers of (known) breaches by developers 

 

Tourism Levy 

What’s being done elsewhere, what work is happening in York to explore this, updates following motion passed at Full Council in March 2025 on this 

 

A-Boards 

How effective has the A-Board “ban” been? 

 

Make It York 

General update on their work, successes, challenges, relationship with all of the market traders, plans for Christmas Market (with reference to Committee’s 

previous recommendation to look at ways to “spread” it out to reduce crowding and make it more accessible). 

 

Park & Ride 

Opportunity to feed into full tender, following likely short-term tender discussed at March 2025 Scrutiny 

 

Age Friendly York 

What is being done to help make the city a better place for older people to live in? 

 

Review of Council’s pedestrian crossing policy 

 

Reviewing city’s Economic Strategy 

 

Review of the original Bus Service Improvement Plan (BSIP) 

Review of how the first BSIP has gone, achievements, next steps, future asks of the Mayoral Combined Authority 

 

Other Bus-related matters 

- Enhanced Bus Partnership; how effective is it, is this the best model for delivering service improvements for residents? 

- Bus stop improvements 

 

Council-run businesses 

How are CYC generating income commercially?  Are we using everything we can to the best of our ability to generate new or more income streams? 

P
age 26



 

York’s Pay Gap 

For 2026 as already had an initial report on the Gender Pay Gap – what is the city’s pay gap like in relation to ethnicity and disability?  What is the Council 

doing to support local businesses – especially smaller ones – to improve on their gender pay gap performance? 

Highway Maintenance 

Adoption of the Highway Infrastructure Asset Management Plan will go through public decision making 

Assets of Community Value 

How can CYC:   

Promote adding to the local register of Assets of Community Value;   

Make it easier for residents and community groups to nominate an ACV;   

Celebrate the success stories of ACVs in our community to encourage new nominations; 

Prepare for law changes on the Community Right to Buy in securing a wider range of ACVs. 

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	1 Declarations of Interest

	3 Minutes
	6 Section 106
	7 Work Plan

